
U.~rITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF P,~ODE ISLAND

I~’rITED STATES OF A~MEPJCA,

PLAINTIFF,

V.

ELITEDESIGNS, KNC., a Rhode Island
corporation, and

A3qTFIO~z A~TO~ELLI, individually mud as
an officer of the corporation,

D~EI:’ENDA2NTS.

CO~’dPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALT}ES, CONSUMER REDtLESS,



Ventures" (’~Franchise Rule" or "Rule"), ] 6 C.F.R. Part 436.

JURISDICTION AND VEN~UE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over tlg.s action pursuant to 28 U-S.C.

§§ 1331, 1337(a), 1345, and 1355, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a), and 

action arises ~nder 15 U.S.C. § 45(@

3. Venue in the United Slates District Court for the District of Riaode Island is proper

under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) - (c) 1395(a), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b).

DEFENDANTS

4. D~endant Elite Designs, Inc. ("Elite DesiLms"), a P,_hode Island corporation with

its principal place of business at 17 Thelma Avenue, North Providence, Rhode Island, promotes

and sells fashion jewelry, dispJay rack business vemures. Elile 





11. Defendants send some prospective purchasers ~,,Mtten material, including a basic

franchise disclosure document.

12. This basic franchise disclosure document, however, is incomplete or inaccurate

because it faiIs to disclose information concerning other business venture purchasers.

THE FRANCHISE RU~E

] 3. The business ventures sold by the defendants are franchises, ~s "franchise" is

defined in Sections 436.2(a)(1)(i~), fa)(2), and (a)(5) of the Franchise Rule ("Rule"), 

436.2(a)(])(ii), (a)(2), and 

14. The Franchise Rule requires a franchisor to provide prospective franchisees with a

complete and accura’~e basic disclosure document containing twenty categories of information,

including information about the litigation and banta-ap~cy history of the franchisor and its

principals, the terms and conditions under which the franchise operates, and information

ideraif?4ng existing franchisees. 16 C.F.R. s 4_~6.1(a)(1) - (a)(20). The pre-sa/e disclosure 

information required by the Rule enable~ a prospective franchisee to contact prior purchasers and

take other steps to assess the potential risks involved in the purchase of the franchise.

15. The Franchise Rule additionally requires that a franchisor:

(a) have a reasonable basis for any oral, written, or ~,isual earnings claim 

makes, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(b)(2), (c)(2) and 

(b) disclose, in immediate conjunction with any earnings claim it makes, and

in a clear and conspicuous manner, that material which constitutes a

reasonable basis for the earnings claim is available to prospective

franchisees, 16 C.F.R. § 436.~1 (b)(2) and (c)(2);
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(el provide, as prescribed by the Kale, an earnings claim doctnnt~nt containing

information that const~tntes a reasonable b~s fo~ ~y e~i~gs clam it

m~{es, 16 C.F.R. ~ 436.1(b) ~d (c); 

(d) cle~ly ~d conspicuously ~isclose, in immediate conjnnmion wi% any

g~GaIly diss~inmed earnings claim, additional info~aion including

the numbe~ ~d p~c~age of prior pmchasers ~mox~ by %e 9~chisor

have ad~ieved *he s~e or bener results, 16 C.F.R. } 436.] (e)(3)-(4).

16. Puget to Section 18(d)(3) of the ~C Act, 15 U.S.C. } 57a(d)(3), 

} 436.1, violaions of %e Fra~d~ise Rule constitme unfair or dec~tive acts or pra~ices in ori5 



alia: (1) lacking a reasonable’basis for each claim at the times i~ is made; (2) failing to disclose,

in immediate conjunction ~’ith each earnings c~aim, and in a clear and conspicuous manner, that

material which constitutes a ~easonabIe bas{s for the claim is available to prospective franchisees;

and/or (3) failing to provide prospecti\’e franchisees ~dth an earnings claim document, 

prescribed by the Rule.

COUNT IIl

Adver~isine Disclosure Violations

19. In cormection with ~he offering of franchises, as "franchise" is defined in Section

436.2(a) of the Franchise Rule, the defendants violate Section 436.1(e) of the Rule and Section

5(a) of the FTC Act by making generally dissu-minaled eamirlgs claims without, b~fer alia,

disclosing., in inzmediate conjunction wi~h the claims, information required by the Franchise Rule

including the number and percentage of prior purchasers kmown by the defendants to have

achieved the same or better results.

CONSU~It~R INJURY

20. Consumers in the United States have suffered and ~a,ill suffer substantial monetary

loss as a result of lhe defendants’ violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC ~ct and the Franchise

Rule. Absent injuncti~’e relief by this Court, the defendants a~e likely to re100 Tz
(relief ) Tj
100 TccatSo
(violate ) Tj
100 Tz
1 0 0 1 3 396 263 Tm
3 Tr 100 Tz
 0 0 1Tz
1 0 0 1 1
1 0 0 1 114 378 Tm
3 Tr 100oIIlloss 



Cormniss~on.

22. Section 5(m)(])(A) oft.he FTC Act, ]5 U.S.C. § 45(m)(])(A), as 

Section 4 of the Federal C{vi] Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 246], as

amended, and as implemented by 16 C.F.R. § 1.98(d) (1997), authorizes this Corn1 to award

monetary ci,,il penalties ofnot more than 511,000 for each violation of the Francb3se Rule. The

defendants’ violations of the Rule were committed with the ],mow]edge required by Section

5(m)(I)(A) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(m)(1)(A).

23. Section 19 of the 
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